
 

           
 

    CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Monday, June 5, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers/Virtual Hybrid Attendance Meeting 

Zoom Meeting ID:   896 4684 7547 
 

****A G E N D A**** 
 
 
 
 

1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) Additions to the Agenda 
6) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
7) Consideration of Minutes of May 15, 2023 
8) Old Business 

A.  City Manager Position 
9) New Business 

A.  Resolution 23-23 Run For The Health Of It 
B.  Resolution 23-24 Authorizing Claim for Protecting MI Pension Grant 
C.  Resolution 23-25 4th of July 2023  
D.  Overnight EGLE Training for Water Plant Employees 

10) Consideration of Bills  
11) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
12) Management Report 
13) Committee Reports 
14) Council Member Comments                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provider  
 



 
City of St. Ignace 

Council Proceedings 
(Unofficial) 

 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, May 15, 2023, in the City 
Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting with Zoom video conference available.  
Mayor LaLonde called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
Councilmember Gustafson led the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmembers Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor 
LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Williford. 
 
ABSENT:  None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Andrea Insley, City Clerk-Treasurer; Charles Palmer, City Attorney; Scott 
Marshall, DDA Director; Kevin James, Police Chief. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA  
Councilmember Pelter – Tony Brown’s request to pay attorney fees (old business). 
Mayor LaLonde – Police Chief James statement. 
Councilmember Cronan – Dock #3 and city property parking. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3-min limit) 
Public comment was received regarding Ferry Lane and the new Hampton Inn in St. Ignace. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE MAY 1, 2023, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING: 
Councilmember Gustafson noted the correct time the meeting was called to order was 7:08 p.m. 
due to some technical difficulties. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve the 
minutes of the May 1, 2023, Regular Council meeting with the noted correction. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
ADDITION TO THE AGENDA 
(1) Councilmember Pelter – Tony Brown Request to Pay Attorney Fees 
Councilmember Pelter requested Council’s consideration regarding the request made by former 
Police Chief Tony Brown to reimburse him for his attorney fees regarding a 2022 employment 
agreement.  After some discussion, it was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by 
Councilmember Williford, to approve the payment of $735 for Tony Brown’s attorney fees 
incurred during negotiations for his 2022 employment contract with the City. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmember Fullerton, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem 
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford and Cronan. 
No:  Councilmember Gustafson. 
Motion carried six to one. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 



A.  RESOLUTION 23-22 LIQUOR LICENSE – 1141 N STATE, LLC  
 
At a Regular meeting of the City of St. Ignace Council called to order by Mayor LaLonde on May 
15, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. the following resolution was offered by Councilmember Gustafson, 
seconded by Councilmember Cronan: 
 
The application from 1141 N State, LLC for the following license B-H MCL 1531.1531(4) to be 
located at 1141 North State Street, St. Ignace, MI  49781 and the following permit for Banquet 
Facility Permit for address:  1141 North State Street, St. Ignace, MI 49781. 
 
It is the consensus of this body that it recommends this application be considered for approval 
by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmember Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem 
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Cronan and Fullerton. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  None. 
Abstain:  Councilmember Williford, due to his spouse working for 1141 N State, LLC. 
Motion carried six to zero, with one abstaining. 
 
B.  FERRY LANE DISCUSSION 
 
Mayor LaLonde informed Council that Ferry Lane improvements were originally discussed in 
early 2022 with MDOT representatives, who recommended borings be done to discover the 
depth of the existing street. The borings were performed by C2AE and a report was provided to 
the City. It was the consensus of Council to seek options for assistance with funding the 
improvements. 
 
ADDITION TO THE AGENDA 
(2) Mayor LaLonde – Police Chief James Statement. 
Mayor LaLonde requested Police Chief James make a statement regarding recent concerns 
about a Truckey Street property.  Chief James assured Council action is being taken to reach a 
solution through appropriate processes. 
 
(3) Councilmember Cronan – Dock #3/Public Launch Parking 
After some discussion about improvements and overseeing City property, it was the consensus 
of the Council that the Dock #3 Committee schedule a meeting to discuss parking near the 
Dock#3 area and the dumpsters stored on City property. 
 
C.  FINANCIALS 
 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley reviewed the April 2023 financials with Council. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, supported by Councilmember Gustafson, to approve 
the April 2023 financials as presented.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers  
         Williford, Cronan, Fullerton and Gustafson. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 



 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley noted the 2022 invoice for C2AE has not been appropriately 
budgeted in 2023 and will generate a necessary budget amendment in the next budget review. 
It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Cronan, to approve 
paying the bills in the amount of $96,280.13. 
 
AIRGAS USA LLC   191.31  
       AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.   1,629.62  
       BAM TOOLS   172.33  
       BELONGA'S PLUMBING AND HEATING   527.03  
       BLARNEY CASTLE OIL CO   15,148.04  
       C2AE   13,650.00  
       CCB'S LLC   1,950.00  
       CHARLES J. PALMER, P.C.   2,256.24  
       EDWARD BARR   200.00  
       ELLEN'S EQUIPMENT INC.   2,205.89  
       GRANICUS   1,533.38  
       HAWKINS   3,524.68  
       HYDRITE CHEMICAL CO   13,371.62  
       JASON ROXNOWSKI   1,030.00  
JOE ST LOUIS   810.00  
       KIMBALL-MIDWEST   932.80  
       KSS ENTERPRISES   229.31  
       KURT NEY   175.68  
       KYLE JAMES BROW   2,880.00  
       MACKINAC PLUMBING AND HEATING CO   1,224.53  
       MACKINAC SALES   198.97  
       MEYER ACE HARDWARE   1,155.53  
       MOTOR PARTS AND EQUIPMENT CORP   1,694.99  
       NATIONAL OFFICE PRODUCTS   10,483.75  
       NORTHERN SHIRT COMPANY, LLC   508.56  
       PARAGON LABORATORIES, INC   1,047.75  
       PAYNE & DOLAN INC   7,670.30  
       PRO-TECH SECURITY SALES   556.00  
       SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS, INC   400.94  
       SPARTAN STORES   74.54  
       ST IGNACE AUTOMOTIVE   688.51  
       STRAITS BUILDING CENTER   620.69  
       THE ST IGNACE NEWS/HOFFMAN MI MEDIA   273.00  
       TROJAN TECHNOLOGIES   6,990.00  
       UIS SCADA   274.14  
        Grand Total:                        $96,280.13  
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, 
         Fullerton, Gustafson and Mayor LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3 min limit) 



Public comment was received regarding the Addition to Agenda #1. 
 
MANAGEMENT REPORT 
City Clerk/Treasurer Insley discussed the following points as part of the Management report: 
-  The City Street Millage Renewal has been recommended to be moved from the August 
    election to the November 7th election. 
-   Short-term rental permits expiring May 31st. 
-  Marina and Golf Course have opened up for the season with sufficient staff. 
 
At this time, it was moved by Councilmember Cronan, seconded by Councilmember Pelter, to 
approve another Addition to the Agenda (4) – City Street Millage Renewal changed from August 
Election to November Election, and to open up public comment on this unexpected agenda 
item.  Public comment was received regarding the amount of the millage renewal.   
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADDITION TO THE AGENDA 
(4) Councilmember Gustafson – Approval for City Street Millage Renewal for November 
7th Election. 
It was moved by Councilmember Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve 
moving the City Street Millage Renewal from the August election to the November 7, 2023, 
election. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Williford, Cronan, Fullerton, Gustafson, Mayor 
         LaLonde and Councilmember Pelter. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
At this time, DDA Director Marshall updated Council on bids for the new Fitness Center 
equipment, grants received for Little Bear East and recreation, and the new staff at the facility. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Negotiations Committee – minutes from May 5 & May 11 Committee meetings were provided for 
Council’s review.  Mayor LaLonde updated Council on the status of the candidate for City 
Manager, Lauren Amellal. 
 
Planning Commission – Betsy Dayrell-Hart offered a resolution on behalf of the Planning 
Commission for the St. Ignace News and Maurer family.  Minutes of the April 11th meeting were 
provided to Council for review. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Councilmember comments were received. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
______________________________                          _________________________________ 
       William LaLonde, Mayor                                       Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



 

 
RESOLUTION 23-23 

 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by _____________________, supported by 

Councilmember __________________: 
 

WHEREAS, the Mackinac Straits Health Foundation requests permission to conduct the  
St. Ignace Run for the Health of It, 10K and 5K Run/Walk; and 
 

WHEREAS, this event requires the usage of North State Street, South Airport Road, North Airport 
Road, and North Boundary Road; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 of the City of St. Ignace, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, requires 
certain criteria to be met in order for the event to be held. 

 
 WHEREAS, it is understood that there may be fees for certain services provided by the City; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the St. Ignace City Council has determined that the 
Mackinac Straits Health Foundation does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
Ordinance No. 413, and 
 

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council does approve the usage of North State 
Street, South Airport Road, North Airport Road, and North Boundary Road for this event on: 
 

    Saturday, August 12, 2023, from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.  
 

Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:  
No:   
Absent:   
 
Resolution declared ______________ 
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace City 
Council for adoption at a Regular meeting held Monday, June 5th, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

             Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 

         

 

























 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 23-24  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CLAIM FOR THE PROTECTING MI PENSION GRANT 
 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by _______, supported by ______: 
 
WHEREAS: Public Act 166 of 2022, Section 979a(1) appropriated funds to the Michigan 

Department of Treasury (Treasury) for the Protecting MI Pension:  Michigan 
Local Pension Grant Program for qualified units that operate a qualified 
retirement system; and 

 
WHEREAS: the St. Ignace City Council supports the submission of an application titled, 

“Protecting MI Pension Grant Application, form 5886” to the Michigan 
Department of Treasury for qualified retirement systems with a funded ratio 
below 60% as defined in the Protecting Local Government Retirement and 
Benefits Act, Public Act 202 of 2017, Section 3, MCL 38.2803; and 

 
WHEREAS: qualified units of local government operating a qualified retirement system with a 

funding ratio below 60% based on the last Form 5572 report filed as required by 
section 5 of the Protecting Local Government Retirement and Benefits Act, 2017 
PA 202, MCL 38.2805, as of December 31, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS: the City of St. Ignace’s qualified pension system funding level was 57.3% as of 

December 31, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS: beginning April 17, 2023, the City of St. Ignace is to review the Protecting MI 

Pension Grant Program with the governing body and approve by way of 
resolution, authorization for the Mayor (Chief Administrative Officer) to file a claim 
for grant payment for the Protecting MI Pension Grant Program; and 

 
WHEREAS: the City of St. Ignace with a qualified retirement system shall comply with “grant 

award requirements”, defined in Section 979a(2) (a)-(f) of Public Act 166 of 2022, 
and further detailed as part of the Protecting MI Pension grant application; and 

 
WHEREAS: the City of St. Ignace acknowledges that it: (i) is a “qualified unit”; (ii) operates a 

“qualified retirement system”; (iii) agrees to comply with the “grant award 
requirements”; (iv) authorizes the Mayor (Chief Administrative Officer) to file a 
claim for a grant award on behalf of the local government;  

 And thus, is eligible to participate in a Protecting MI Pension Grant Program; now 
therefore  

 
BE IT RESOLVED:  the St. Ignace City Council does hereby authorize participation in the Protecting 

MI Pension Grant program and, on behalf of the City of St. Ignace, authorizes 
William LaLonde, City Mayor, to provide this resolution indicating its approval to 
Treasury, and to submit and execute documents requested by Treasury relating 
to the Protecting MI Pension grant program requirements. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:   
No: 
Absent:   
RESOLUTION DECLARED  
 



 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 23-24  

I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace City 
Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, June 5, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

            
 
____________________________________ 

              Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 















RESOLUTION 23-25 
 
The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember ______________, 
supported by _________________: 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce requests permission to conduct the 
2023 July 4th Celebration; and 
 

WHEREAS, this event requires the usage of BL I-75, Little Bear East grounds and 
parking lot; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 of the City of St. Ignace, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, 
requires certain criteria to be met in order for the event to be held. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the St. Ignace City Council does approve 
the St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce to be a “Special Events Organization” and has 
determined that the St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce does meet the criteria established in the 
various sections of the Ordinance No. 413 and grants St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce the 
authority to control vending approved by the City during the event; and 
 

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council does approve the usage of BL I-75, 
Little Bear East grounds and parking lot for this event, for the following dates and times.  

 

• BL I-75, closed from S. State Street to Reagon Street, Tuesday, July 4, 
from 4:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

• Community Party at Little Bear East grounds and parking lot on Tuesday, July 4, 
from 4:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

• Little Bear East parking lot partially closed Tuesday, July 4, 
from 3:00 p.m.- 10:00 p.m.  

 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Yes:   
No:    
None. 
Absent:  
 
Resolution declared Adopted.  
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the  
St. Ignace City Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, June 5, 2023, at  
7:00 p.m. 
 
                                                                               ___________________________________ 

     Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 

 











Advantage Fleet Sweeper Rental Fee/Equipment Repair $361.25

Amazon May 2023 Statement $1,759.83

Andy's Feed Station Parks Grass Seed $60.00

Arrow Signs SIFD Decals/LBE Sign/Marina Sign $160.00

Beckett & Raeder Zoning Ord. Planning Services $170.00

Belonga Excavating Top Soil Museum $540.00

Belonga Plumbing & Heating Marina Showers Repair/Water Turn On $513.30

Blair's Powerwash Water Plant Power Wash $875.00

Dinges Fire Company SCBA Bottles $303.07

Ellen's Equipment DPW-Bobcat Bearing $1,014.73

ETNA Local Streets Road Project $316.00

Ferguson Water Line Marking Flags $129.52

Flotation Docking Systems Inc. Marina Fenders $366.00

George's Body Shop SIPD Car Repair $2,842.17

Graham Motor/Standard Electric Wastewater Plant Service Call $227.00

Hawkins Water Plant Supplies $70.00

Holiday Inn of Marquette Drinking Water Operators Course $540.60

Hydrite Chemical Water Plant Bulk Alum $8,365.10

Judy Wyse SIPD Sew $25.00

KSS LBE/Marina Supplies $1,518.80

Law Office of Alfred Feleppa April-May 2023 Attorney Fees $915.25

Mackinac Island Ferry Company LBE Concession $57.84

Mackinac Plumbing Golf Course Bathrooms $65.00

Mark J. Peterson LBE Repairs $350.00

Mark Wilk Marina CPR & AED Class $150.00

Meyer Ace Hardware May 2023 Statement $2,120.44

Michigan Rural Water Assoc. Annual Dues $800.00

MiDeal Annual Membership $180.00

Miller Canfield 2022 Attorney Fees $10,351.00

National Office Products May 2023 Statement $2,636.78

NCL-North Central Labs Water Plant Lab Supplies $501.89

Northern Shirt Company LBE Rec Program Shirts/Jersey $1,332.00

Paragon Laboratories WTR Testing $469.30

Pharos Marine Automatic Power Boat Launch Navigational Light $1,238.71

Pollardwater Water Line Marking Paint/Mill Disc $395.91

Precision Edge Outdoor Services LLC Spring Clean-up $3,740.75

Pro-tech Sales SIPD Uniforms $974.00

Quill Water Plant File Cabinet, Tabs/Labels $180.96

R&R Fire Truck Repair Annual Equipment Maintenance $1,121.57

Spartan Distributors Golf Supplies $349.91

St Ignace Chamber of Commerce July 4th Parade Activities $2,000.00

State of Michigan Drinking Water Operators Course $190.00

Taylor Rental LBE Home Show Pipe & Drape $3,618.00

The Home City Ice Company Marina Ice $424.34

The St. Ignace News May 2023 Statement $1,657.00

UIS Scada Water Plant Repair $2,415.80

UP North Flags & Poles LBE Flag Pole Repair/Replacement $690.00

USA Bluebook WTR/WWTR Lab $959.31

Witmer Public Safety Group Thermal Camera Kit (MMRMA Grant) $3,178.07

$63,221.20

Invoices for Approval
Monday, June 5, 2023


	01 Agenda 6-5-23
	02 5 15 2023 min
	03Resolution 23-23 Run for the Health of It 2023
	04 Special Event App - Run for the Health of It 2023
	05Resolution 23-24 Authorizing Claim for Protecting MI Pension Grant
	06 Protecting MI Pension Grant
	07 Resolution 23-25  July 4 2023 (2)
	08 Water Plant EGLE Training
	09 Council Bills List 6-5-2023



